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1. Name of property
historic name Main Street Historic District

other names/site number

2. Location

street & number Bounded roughly by Gaston Street on the east, Englancj Street on the west, Probart Street on the north,

and Jordan Street on the south. _ not for publication N/A
city or town  Brevard vicinity N/A
state North Carolina code NC county Transylvania code 175 zip code 28712

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1986, as amended, | hereby certify that this X  nomination
request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties In the National Register of Historic
Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth In 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property

N meets does not meet the National Register Criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant
nationally statewide X locally. ( See continuation sheet for additional comments.)
Slgnatiwfe fftcertifvviH official Date

North Carolina Department of Ciiltural Resources
state or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria. ( See continuation sheet for additional
comments.)
Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification
I, hereCy certify that this property is: nature of the Date /of Action

‘entered In the National Register
See continuation sheet.
determined eligible for the
National Register
See continuation sheet.
detemiined not eligible for the
National Register
removed from the National Register

. other (explain):



Main Street Historic Distict
Name of Property

5. Classification

Transylvania, North Carolina
County and State

Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
(Check as many boxes as apply) (Check only one box) (Do not include previously listed resources in the count)
private building{s) Contributing Noncontributing
X public-local X district 32 14 buildings
public-State site 0 0 sites
public-Federal structure 0 1 structures
object 0 objects
32 15 Total
Name of related multiple property listing Number of contributing resources previously
(Enter "N/A" If property is not part of a multiple property listing.) listed in the National Register

"Historic and Architectural Resources of Transylvania Co. NC,
including the Towns of Brevard and Rosman, ca. 1820-1941'

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from Instructions)

Cat: Commerce Sub: specialty store
Commerce department store
Commerce financial institution
Commerce business
Government courthouse
Government fire station

Current Functions
(Enter categories from Instructions)

Cat: Commerce Sub:  specialty store
Commerce restaurant
Commerce financial institution
Commerce professional
Government courthouse

7. Description
Architectural Classification (Enter categories from Instnjctions)
Commercial Style
_Second Empire
Classical Revival

Materials (Enter categories from Instnjctlons)
foundation  brick

roof asphalt

walls brick
stucco

other stone
limestone

Narrative Description
(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)
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SUmmary

Located inthe center of the town of Brevard, Transylvania County, North Caroling, the Main
Street Historic District isbounded roughly by Gaston Street on the east, England Street on the
west, Probart Street on the north, and Jordan Street on the south. The town of Brevard is laid out
in abadc grid pattem intergpersed by sarvice dleys, with the district centered around the original
courthouse square located gpproximately in the center of town (see Exhibit A). Lots ae
basicaly smal and leve with the street, with only the courthouse sat dightly up on ahill for
prominence. Contiguous buildings line both sdesofthe dreets, with the only free-standing
buildings being the commercial buildings a 4-6 Times Arcade, 5 Times Arcade, W.
Probart Street, and 104 West Main Street (#4, ca 1945; #5, ca. 1930; #10, ca 1940 and #14,
ca 1950) and the Transylvania County Courthouse and associated buildings/structures on
the samelot (#24, 1874, 1956, and 1996). Development outside of the district isprimarily free-
danding modem commercia buildings, parking lots, and some dusters of historic and modem
resdences.

The nominated district consstsof thirty-two contributing buildings, fourteen non-contributing
buildings, one non-contributing stmcture, and one vacant lot. Contributing properties are those
which are fifty yearsold or older which have only undergone minimal architecturad changes
primarily a the storefront level. Twelve ofthe non-contributing buildings fall within the period
of dgnificance, but haveimdergone extensve architectural changes and lossof integrity. While
these buildings have lost someof their individual architectura integrity, the overal affect onthe
district isminimal ancethey are still part of the dense clustering of buildings whichform the
central busnessdistrict of Brevard. Only two of the non-contributing buildings were built after
1952, inthe late 1950sand 1960s, and therefore fall out of the period of significance. The
district covers gpproximately thirteen acres.

Buildings inthe district rangein date from 1874 to the early 1950s. Mo are ore to three story
common brick bond or succo Commercid Style buildingswith flat roofs and pargpet walls,
occupying smdl lots but there are severd notable exceptions. Theseincludethe  Itdianate
Transylvania County Courthouse (#24, 1874), st high on ahill on alarge lot; the Queen Anne
McMinn Building (#23, 1899); the Lowe Auto Company (#15, ca 1928) with notable
herringbone pattem brick; and the Neoclassicad Reviva Brevard Banking Company (#28,
1924). Two buildingsinthe district were previoudy individually listed inthe National Regider,
the McMinn Building (1994) and the Transylvania County Courthouse (1979).
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Inventory List

Buildings are listed in the order of north-south Sreetsfirst, followed by eest-wes dreets. North-
south dreets are listed with the west Sde of dreet first; esst-wed dreets are listed with the north
ddeof dredt first. Building names are based upon dociunentary photographs, Sanbom maps,
oral history, and previoudy compiled National Regigter forms. The name is either thefirst
occupant of the building or along term occupant during the period of signfiicance. Dating of
buildings isbasad upon 1911,1916, 1924, and 1931 Sanbom mapsused in the field,
documentary photographs from the Pat Austin Collection, ora history interview with Pat Austin,
owner-provided information, and North CarolinaOffice of Archives & History survey files.
These sources are noted with each entry.

North Caldwell Sred—ead 9de

1 PIN #8568.1951.0353, N. Caldwel Street. Warehouse Building.

Contributing, ca. 1910.
One-gtory commercia building with brick pargpet wall and two storefront bays. Painted brick
walls, ducco on north sde, meta panes cover windows a rear. Aluminum frame replacement
gorefront doors and windows. Sanbom mgpsindicate thisbuilding was originally ussd asa
building materids warehouse, and later agarage. By 1924, there weretwo doresin the building,
one of whichwas T. M. Mitchell'sgrocery. (Sanbom maps, survey files).

2. 37N. Caldwel Street McCrary's Hudson and Edsel Dealer ship.

Contributing, ca. 1920.
One-gtory commercid brick building with four distinct bays. Pargpet corbeled comice, and inset
brick pands. North bay retains itsoriginal storefront including glasstile transom, copper
framing, and singlelight door with fransom. Original tin ceiling indde. Two southem bays have
been infilled with duminumframestorefronts, but retaintheir origina I-beams above the current
display windows. The current display windowframeswere probably the location ofthe original
garage door openings.  Original use of thisbuilding was as asore on the north sde, and an auto
garage within thetwo south bays, McCrary's Hudson and Edsd dedership. By 1946, the two
south bays were in use as abowling alley owned by T. T. Loftis, Frank Mcintosh, and Walt
Weilt. (Sanbom maps, survey files).

3. PIN#8568.18.41.9267, N.Caldwell Street Smith Dodge Dealer ship.

Contributing, ca. 1920.
One-gory brick commercid building with three bays. All openings original with replacement
auminum framing on door and windows. Peargpet wall, arched window and original double |eaf
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doors on south sde. Original usesfor thisbuilding were as agore and as Smith's Dodge
dedership and auto repair shop. By 1946, the building was ussd for hosiery manufacturing.
(Sanbom maps, survey files).

Times Arcade Sred—wes Sde

4. 46 TimesArcade. Commercial Buildmg. Non-contributing, ca. 1945.

One-gtory concrete block building with an added pent roof & the front, textured plywood facede
and dopingflat roof to therear. Two storefront bays, probably origina configuration, but
remainder of facade isdtered. (Sanbom maps).

Times Arcade Sred—ead Sde

5. 5TimesArcade. Commercial Building. Contributing, ca. 1930.

One-gory textured brick commercia building with flat roof, pargpet walls and two original
sorefronts. The center storefront bay has been infilled with concrete. Original bays have copper
framing, glasstile transoms, and recessed double leaf center doors. Original uses of building
wereretaill gores.  (Sanbom maps).

South Broad Sregd—wes sde

6. 4-8 South Broad Street. Commercial Building. Contributing, ca. 1920.

Two-story brick building with inset brick pands a the comice, soldier course brick enframing all
sscond story windows. Row of eight one-over-one windows on second floor, and intact
sorefront bays. Original double leaf door to second floor. Hat roof with pargpet walls, smal
one-dory addition & rear, by 1931. Origina use of thisbuilding was doresin thetwo south
bays, and abank in the northem bay. 1n 1946, the sscond floor was aMasonic Lodge hall. Other
usesfrom the 1940s to 1950s include Dixie Home Stores and Galloways Cafe. Thislot was usd
for farm implement sorage before the present building was congmcted.  (Sanbom maps
documentary photos).

7. 30-34 South Broad Street. Masonic Hall. Non-contributing, ca. 1910.

Extremely dtered two-story building covered by a sheet duminum facade on the north and a
fiilU-height pent shingleroof on the south, dating from after 1952. Documentary photos indicated
an daborate pargpet rooflinewith center gable, gpoparently removed sometime after the 1950s
Origina usssincluded the Masonic Hall on the second floor, and apod office, jewelry, and
imdertaker/fiimiture business a different times on the first floor. Building use by 1916 included
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an dectric supply store and afive and ten cent dore. The pogt office remained in the building
through & least 1931. Usssin the 1940s and 1950s included A & P Food Store, The Grill, and
Gaithers. Thiswas dso one of four locations of the Austin Photo studio.  (Sanbom maps,
documentary photos, owner, interview with Pat Austin).

8. 36-38 South Broad Street. Brevard DruggMull's Grocery.

Contributing, ca. 1926.
Two-story brick building with two origina storefront bays. Windows are meta frameawning
syle, with acontinuous heeder stringcourse a the sill line. Soldier coursing a lintel and comice.
Hat roof with pargpet walls. Origina usesin thisbuilding wereretail sores, one of the earliest
being Mull's Grocery, inthe north half of the building. Vamer'sDmg Store was located in the
south bay beginning in 1942, 1t was originally located acrossthe dreet on thefirst floor ofthe
Aethelwold Hotel.  (Sanbom magps, documentary photos, survey files, interview with Pat
Austin, interview with Betty Sherrill).

9. 112-116 South Broad Street Mull Theater. Contributing, ca. 1925.

Two-story brick comer commercia building with clipped comer on northeest. Band of double
one-over-one windows on sscond floor. Three storefront bays on the Broad Street facade and
comer somewhat dtered. Singlelight door to sscond floor. One-gtory addition at rear. Original
uses for this building was retail on the first floor, with the Mull Theeter onthe second. Hat
roof (Sanbom maeps, interview with Pat Austin).

Wes Probart Sreg—south sSde

10. PIN#8568.19.51.1226,W. Probart Street Commercial Building.

Contributing, ca. 1940.
Two-story commercid brick and stucco building with added shalow gable roof Glass block
windows on second floor; metd framemulti-light casament windows on the first. Soldier coiuse
brick above front door, all windows, and between the first and second floors. Center double |eaf
doorframedby single multi-light casement windows. (Sanbom maps).

Wes Main Sres—north sde

11. 128 Wes Main Street Brevard Citv Hall and Fire Station.

Contributing. 1926.
Two-story brick building with highly intact exterior, andtin ceiling ontheinterior. Yellow
brick with decorative red brick squares Recessad entry door to second floor a southeest comer.



NPS Fomi 10-900-a OMB No. 1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department ofthe Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET

Section 7 Page 5 Main Street Historic District
name of property

Transvlvania. North Carolina
county and state

Original garage door bay to the north. One-over-one windows, and pargpet roof. To the
northwest is aone-story concrete block addition, set back from the original building facade. To
the rear of the original building isameta shed addition for sorage of vehicles, with cormgated
meta walls and open bays. Built asthe fire gation for the city, with offices for the drest
maintenance department upstairs. Built by Bob Kilpatrick, son of prominent Brevard builder R.
P. Kilpatrick. Additionsto dde andrear.  (Sanbom maps, survey files).

12. 126 Wed Main Street. Commercial Building. Non-contributing, ca. 1945.
One-gtory brick and stucco building which hes been extensvely dtered with the replacement of
windows and door. Five bays wide, pargpet roof Thisbuilding housed aflorist shop in the
1940s. (Sanbom maps, interview with Pat Austin).

13 112-118 Wes Main Street Ward's Newsstand/Blue Gator Tea Room.

Contributing, ca. 1925-1931, ca. 1940s
One-gtory brick building which was constmcted as one building, with current facade added ca
1940s Three storefronts with center door and flanking large single pane windows. The
eedernmogt section of the building retains itsoriginal storefront configuration, but with the
originafransomcovered by brick. Fat roofwith pargoet walls, succo on eest wall. Severd
additions a reer. Ward's Newsstand, the Blue Gator Tea Room, and a plumbing shop were
occupants ofthe building in the 1920s.  (Sanbom maps, documentary photos, interview with Pat
Austin).

14. 14 Wes Main Street Commercial Building. Contributing, ca. 1950.

One-gtory square brick building st back from the sret, built asamonument shop. Fat roof
with pargpet walls, two-horizonta -over-two-horizontal windows. The Clayton Hotel, built in
1895 by Joe and Belle Clayton, was originally located on this site. (Sanbom meps, documentary
photos, interview with Pat Austin).

15. 72Wed Main Street Lowe Auto Company. Contributing, ca. 1928.

Two-story with basament yellow brick building with many decorative features including
herringbone pands st with cast medalionsof cars, adenticulated comice, decorative brick
pands imder the windows, and pressed-glasstransoms. Windows are metd framemullti-light
awvning style, with display windows wrapping from thefront around to the eest Sde. Flat roof
with pargpet walls. Built asthe Lowe Auto Company, aFord dedership showroom and garage.
Theinterior ofthe building originally had aconcrete ramp extending to the upper floors. It later
sved asahosery mill during World War |, the Wheder Hosery Company, and then as
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Pearlman's Fumiture.  (Sanbom maps, field observafion, documentary photos, survey files,
owner, interview with Pat Austin).

16. 62 West Main Street Commercial Building. Contributing, ca. 1928.

One-gory yelow brick building with two intact storefront bays. Concrete block addition & reer.

Some detailingis smilar to the adjacent Lowe Auto Company building, and it is very likely this
was built a the same time. There has been a barber shop inthis location sncethe 1940s Before
this, there was awoodframebuilding inuse as ahamburger stand.  (Sanbom maps,

documentary photos, interview with Pat Austin, survey files).

17. 60 Wes Main Street. Commercial Building. Non-contributing, ca. 1930.
One-dory dtered building with diagona wood siding and stone venear applied to the facade.
Pagpetroof  ( Sanbom maps).

18. 52 Wedt Main Street Clement Jewdry Store. Contributing, ca. 1910.

Two-gtory brick building with dtered storefront, but st within the original opening. Intact upper
facade. One-gory wing & rear. Hat roofwith pargpet walls, three six-over-sx windows. This
was oncethe location of the Clement Jawery Store. (Sanbom magps, survey files, owner).

19. 42 Wedst Main Street. Commercial Building. Non-contributing, ca. 1930.

One-dory extremely dtered brick building with anew facade and changein rooflinefromflat to
doping. Modem shed-roof shingled awning extendsto the adjacent building to the eedt. Rear
addition with gableroof (Sanbom maps).

20. 40 Wedt Main Street Pickelsmer's Drug Store. Contributing, ca. 1935.

Two-story brick building, dtered on thefirst floor, but intact on the upper facade and eedt
eevation. Hat roof, four multi-light meta frame casament windows on the sscond story front
and four-over-one windowson the sde. Origina meta baconies protmde into aley on the eest
dde, with origina doors opening onto eech one.  Earlier use of thisbuilding was Pickdsmer's
Dmg Storeonthe first floor. There were dso originally four gpartments on the second floor.
(Sanbom maps, survey files, interview with Pat Austin).

21. 22-36 West Main Street Plummer's Department Store. Contributing. 1911
Three-gtory brick building with two storefront bays and a center sair to the sscond floor. New
auminumframingon storefronts, but origina configurationsthere. Second floor divided by
brick pilasters into five irregular recessed bays. One-over-one windowswith flat arches, flat roof
with corbelled comice. Sanbom mapsindicate imder constmction in 1911. Part of the McMinn
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Block, the earliest devdlopment ofthe commercid center around the courthouse square in
downtown Brevard. Early busnessesincluded abarber shop and hardware store. Flummer's
Department Store was located in thisbuilding from the 1930s to the 1950s, with the Clemson
Theater upgtairs.  (Sanbom maps, survey files, docimientary photos, interview with Pat Austin).

22. 16 Wedt Main Street Allison'sHardware. Contributing, ca. 1901.

Two-story brick building two bayswide, with imusua succo walls scored to look like brick..
Thisfreatmentgppearsto be original. Storefront arealis recessed and modernized with some new
materias, but configuration and sethack are original (sse documentary photos). Notable fluted
iron columns a storefront level. Hat roof, corbeled comice. Stone foundation. Two-over-two
windows & rear, front windows are gorms only. Part ofthe McMinn Block. Early busnesses
here included a fiimittire sore. Mack Allison's Hardware store was located in thisbuilding from
the 1930stothe 1950s  (Sanbom maps, survey files, documentary photos, interview with Pat
Austin).

23. 414 Wedst Main Street McMinn Building. Contributing. 1899. (NR listed).

Two-story brick building with acomer entrance like Davis-Walker Drug Company (#34, ca
1900, dtered ca. 19605 and the Aethelwold Hotel (#35, 1905, dtered ca. 1960) which dso face
the coiuthouse square. Foiu- irregular baysdivided by pilasters across the front and three dong
the eedt elevation. Romanesgue-influenced decorative brickwork includes a drip-corbeled
comice, pilasters, and raised ssgmentd arches over the second-story  one-over-one windows.
Thetwo westernmost storefronts are original in materias and configuration with some addition
of paneling and other modem materids a the comer storefront and entry, fron pilastersaroimd
the storefronts are damped with "Mesker Brog/Front Builders/St. Louis, Mo/Pat Oct, '87". Porch
a the rear has been endosed. Flat roofwith sepped pargpet wall on eest Sde. Interior features
include pressed tin cellingson the first floor, and the building retains itsorigina office
configuration upstairs. Notable second floor features include awide Sarcasewith tumed
bauders, wainscot and chair rail, transoms above the doors, and bullseye comer blocks.
Hardwoodf| oorsremain throughout.

Part of the McMinn Block, the McMinn Building was constmcted in 1899 by Nathan Van Buren
McMinn, aprominent Brevard busnessman who came to Brevardin 1861. It was thefirst brick
commercid building completed in downtown Brevard, and remains alandmark building within
the cenfral busnessarea. Some ofthe bugnessssin this building have included the Brevard
Banking Company, which Nathan McMinn founded in 1898, ashoedore, T.B. Allison Dmg
Store and MacFieésDmg Store a the comer gore, Canteen Cafe, Nichol's Dmg Store, abus
dation & the rear, the Roya Cafe, and severd lawyers and dentids offices on the sscond floor.



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB No. 1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department ofthe Interior
National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET

Section 7 Page 8 Main Street Historic District
name of property

Transvlvania. North Carolina
county and state

Some of the prominent lawyers axd judges who had offices here include Waightstill Avery Gagh,
Robert Lenoir Gash, D. L. English, and Robert T. Gash. The Austin Photo studio was dso
located on the second floor. (National Register nomination, Sanbom maps, documentary photos,
aurvey files, interview with Pat Austin).

East Main Sres—north sde

24. 12 East Main Street Transvlvania County Courthouse. Contributing. 1874.

(NR ligted)

Sa on an devated ot within apark-like setting a the northeest comer of the two main
crossoads, the courthouse is atwo-story Second Empire style brick building with a prominent
three-story centra tower cgpped by amansard roof  Two-over-two windows withfransomsare
capped by segmental arches Notable architectural detailing includes brick quoins and a recessed
centra entry set back from an arched opening topped by brick voussoirs and a keystone. Low hip
roof Stone retaining wall extends around the south and west 9desof the lot, probably
constmcted by local gonemasonsthe Wright brothers. The courthouse, one ofthe oldest in
westem North Carolina, was completed in 1874 and was built by local contractor Thomas Davis
a acos of $12,000. It was the first brick ssmcture in the town. The jail, atwo-story brick
addition with the same ssgmentd arched windows as the original section and ahip roof, was
built in 1921, and an additional wing was added ca 1983, to the rear of the jail, dso of brick with
ahip roof (Nationa Register nomination, Sanbom maps, survey files, documentary photos).

24A. Adminidgration Building. Non-contributing. 1956.

One-gtory brick building with aflat roof, modem doors and windows. Thisbuilding served as
the library when it wasfirst built. Two-story wing a the northeast comer added ca. 1960. A
covered walkway leads from the west Sde of the one-story section to the main courthouse.

The adminigtration building occupies the site of the former United Daughters of the Confederacy

library (see documentary photo).

24B. Seating shdter. Non-contributing structure. 1996.
One-gory shdter ssmcture with ahip roof, open sides. Triple postson brick piers, concrete
floor, beaded board ceiling, benches around the perimeter.

25. 0 East Main Street Commercial Building. Non-contributing, ca. 1965.
One-gtory modem infill building with aflat roof, sone veneer facade.
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26. 4648 East Main Street Pearlman's. Contributing. 1952.

One-gory brick building, five bayswide, built for Pearlman's Fumiture Store. Most metal and
brick storefront openings intact. Two westernmost bay's have recessed storefronts, others are
flush with the Sdewak. Transoms covered with meta pandsin the threeremaining bays Hat
roofwith stepped pargpet wall in center. Replaced ahouse & this location. 1950s photographs
show the Dixie Home Supermarket in the center storefront. (Sanbom maps, interview with Pat
Austin, owner).

Wes Main Sret—south dde

27. 101 Wes Main Street Co-ed Theater. Contributing. 1939.

Two-story Art Modeme succo building with a sepped facade, cenfral recessed entry bay on the
first floor and arow of casament windows on the sscond floor, apparently original. Double |eaf
front door. New brick wall onthe eest, where the adjacent Clemson Theater was tom down. Flat
roof A hardware gore originally in this location was tom down to build the Co-ed Thedter.
Owned and built by the Clements family, who adso owned the adjacent Clemson Theeter. In
1942, Bryan Shiflet, Vemon Davis, and C. G. Carter, all of Morganton, bought the Co-ed
Theater. When the Clemson Theater wes still standing, there were two active theatersin the
downtown through 1956, when the Clemson shut itsdoors. 1t was tom downin the early 19905
and the ticket booth was moved to the Co-ed Theater (now Falls Theater).  (Sanbom maps,
docimientary photos, interview with Pat Austin).

vacant lot to the east

28. 73Wedt Main Street Brevard Banking Company. Contributing. 1924.

Two-story, Neodassicd Reviva style, Hemish-bond brick building with amonumentd entry
portico detailed inlimestone. Portico details include half columns, a fiill entablature, and an
arched window above the recessed front door. Flat roof has alow pedimented pargpet in front.
Arched window openings with scroll omamentation intact, but all original windows have been
replaced with fixed panes. Front windows, flanking the central door, have decorative limestone
garlands abovethem. To the rear isamore plain two-story brick section, apparently original,
and amodem ducco ca. 19/0saddition. Drive-through area added to the eedt, covered by a
gabled roof Dedgned by prominent Hendersonville architect Erie Stillwell and built by
Brevard contractor R. P. Kilpatrick. Brevard Banking Company failed in 1929, and the building
wes later occupied by Transylvania Tmst Company, beginning in 1931. Still in use as abank.
(Sanbom maps, Stillwell Drawings Collection inventory, documentary photos).
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29. 5357 Wed Main Street Ayer'sDry Goods Store. Contributing, ca. 1926.

One-gtory brick building with origina storefront configuration and transoms above.
Replacement auminumframingon display windows, and modem doors. Flat roof with pargpet
walls. Early occupant was Ayer'sDry Good Store.  (Sanbom magps, survey files, owner).

30. 4551 Wed Main Street C. B. Scott Grocery. Non-contributing, ca. 1920.

Two-story brick building with replacement storefront and replacement fixed windows on upper
facade. Reoessed brick pand with brick corbelling above, & comice level. Hat roof Door
frame andfransomon the eest Sde of the building are original, with amodem door. Originaly
there was a porch a the reer of the building. Modem addition to rear. Early occupant of the
building was the C. B. Scott Grocery. Later uses included a supermarket and other generd
dores. (Sanbom maps, interview with Pat Austin, survey files, owner).

31l. B Wes Main Street Wallt Clothing Store. Non-contributing, ca. 1915.

Two-story brick building dtered with amodem storefront and changes to upper facade. Thefirst
occupant of this building was the Weilt Clothing Store.  Rosgsweas |located inthisbuilding from
the late 1939 through a least the late 1940s  (Sanbom maps, documentary photos, interview
with Pat Austin, owner).

32. 17 Weds Main Street City Market Contributing, ca. 1905, alterations 1940s
Two-story brick building which had been recently renovated back to its 1940s gopearance. Hat
roof with pargpet walls. Awning stylewindows. This building hes had severd facade changes
including onein the late 1940s. These changesincluded re-building the second floor to raise the
pargpet toitscurrent level, which is even with the buildings on either Sde, and adding new brick
facing, windows, and anew storefront. Much of the interior was o remodded in the 1940sto
include woodworking trim from the Lake Toxaway Inn. Part of the Pickelsmer Block and one
of the oldest buildings on Main Sfreet. One of the earliest uses was the City Market. In the early
190s the building was Cato Clothing. It later became part of Patterson's Department Store in
the late 1940s and 1950s. A modem facade was applied over this and the adjacent building (#33)
in the 1970s, which has been removed. (Sanbom maps, documentary photos, interview with Pat
Austin, owner).

33. I5Wes Main Street Ward's Newsstand. Non-contributing, ca. 1900.
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Two-story brick building, dtered in the 1970swith anew brick facade and modem storefront.
One-over-one replacement windows. Pat ofthe Pickelsmer Block, and one ofthe oldest
buildings on Main Sfreet. One of the early uses of thisbuilding was Ward's Newsstand. It later
became part of Patterson's Department Store.  (Sanbom maps, documentary photas, interview
with Pa Austin).

34. 1Wes Main Street. DavisWalker Drug Company. Non-contributing, ca. 1900,
altered ca. 1960s

Exfremely dtered two-story building covered with artificial vinyl siding. The brick corbelled
comice, some two-over-one windows, and the comer entry storefront are the only original
features that remain intact. Part of the Pickesmer Block, later owned by T. W. Whitmire,
owner of the Watermire Hotel acrossthe Sreet (#35). The building was originally occupied by
DavisWaker Dmg Company. Roy Long, admggist, cameto Brevard in 1924 and opened a
dmgstore. Long'sDmg. Long died in 1937, and the building was bought by Eddie Vamer.
Documentary photos indicate the building was duccoed after 1935. In the 1960sthe building
was occupied by MorrisDmg. During the time Long ran the dmgdore, it contained a fiill
sarvice sodafountain, and was aloca gathering place.  (Sanbom maps, documentary photos,
interview with Pat Austin).

East Main Sres—south sde

35. 13 East Main Street. Aethdwold Hotel. Non-contributing. 1905, altered

ca. 1960.
Two-story brick building. Originaly Quean Anne style with retail on the first floor and rooms
on the second. Building tums back into the block from South Broad Street and forms an L-shape
behind the adjacent buildings facing onto Eag Main Sfreet. On the Main Street Sde aretwo
dorefront bays on the first floor, one modem and one retaining its original configuration and
detailing. Five bays on the second floor with single one-over-one arched windows, and adouble
leaf door in the center. The original entrance to the hotel,framedby the origina rough cut ashlar
block faces Broad Street. Rear walls have been succoed. Originally the building had athird
dory st within amansard roofline. Thiswas removed ca. 1960 when it was conddered to bea
fire hazard by town officials, leaving the present flat roof Also removed about the same time
was the one-gtory portico with baudrade onthe west Sde (Broad Street) of the building, and the
done arches a the comer entry facing onto the courthouse square. Much of the original interior
detailing remains, including tin ceillingson thefirst floor.
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The Aethelwold Hotel was built by John William McMiim, son of Nathan McMinn, the
deveoper of the McMinn Block diagonaly acrossthe Sreet. The hotel was named for John
McMinn'swife Ethel. McMinn continued to mn the hotel until his desth in 1918. Thefirst floor
of the building housed many retail and commercia busnesses, including Parson's Jewelry,
Vamer's Dmg Store, Peoples Bank, the Waltermire Grill, and an insurance company. The hotel
could house one hundred guestsin forty rooms on the upper two floors. After McMinn died, T.
W. Whitmire bought the building and renamed the hotel the Waltermire for his son Walter. T.
W. Whitmire was bom in Brevard, and in 1890 married Mattie Cooper. He served sixteen years
&6 ether mayor or chairman of the Board of Aldermen. Hewas an active local busnessman, with
ventures inretail, rea estate, and insurance. While dtered, thisisthe only remaining example of
the grand hotels which were built in downtown Brevard a the tum of the century. (Sanbom
maps, documentary photos, interview with Pat Austin).

36. 7East Main Street A & P Grocery. Contributing, ca. 1920.

Simple one-gory brick building with intact storefront configuration, and apressed glass fransom.
Hat roof with pargpet walls. A & P Grocery was one of the early occupants of thisbuilding.
Brevard Hardware was d <0 located herein the 1940s.  (Sanbom migps, interview with Pat
Austin).

37. 11-23 East Main Street Audtin's Photo Shop. Non-contributing, ca. 1930.

altered 1958.

One-gory dtered building with modem storefronts and vinyl siding on the upper facade.
Currently divided into two separate busnesses. Hat roof with pargpet walls.  The Austin family
ran thefr photo shop and photography busnessin the west 9de of the building from 1939 until
the late 1990s Busnessssinthe eest Sde of the building have included admgstore, a retaurant,
Cao's, ataxi dand and arecord shop. The building was remodeled in 1958 to its present
condition. (Sanbom maps documentary photos, survey files, interview with Pat Austin).

38. 3530 East Main Street T. B. Crarv Hotd. Contributing, ca. 1910.

Two-story, three-bay, brick building consgmcted as ahotel. Originally thisbuilding had a two-
gdory porch in front. It has been dtered on the upper facade with astucco covering and added
window arches Two storefront baysretain their original configurations, cenfral door is modem.
Stone foundation. East and south elevations retain origina brick walls and one-over-one
windows. Flatroof Theinterior retains itsoriginal doors with transoms, stair with square
newds and tumed balusters, and molded door surroimds. Businessesherein 1911 included a
grocery store. By 1916, the Hotel Crary was listed on Sanbom magps. In later years, offices were
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housed updtairs, and ablacksmith worked inthe basament. (Sanbom maps, survey files,
documentary photos, owner).

39. B3 East Main Street Livery Stable. Contributing, ca. 1910, altered late 1920s
One-gtory building with the storefront and brick facing on the facade added by 1924. Metal
pands cover the brick a the storefront, and stucco has been added on the upper facade.
Windows bricked inon sde and rear. The origina livery sable isthe large Sone section & rear
built ca 1910. Houston's Fumiture next door bought the building in the 1940s and cut through as
part of its retail busness (Sanbom maps, survey files, interview with Pat Austin).

40. 55 East Main Street Whitmire Motor Company. Contributing, ca. 1925.

Tall one-story brick building with acenfral recessed entry and storefront which gpopearsto date
from 1941, when Houston's Fumiture opened. Tile entryfl oor ,fransomspainted over. Notable
basket weave brick in recessed pand on upper facade. Flat roof Interior skylightsand
mezzanine balcony remain. Built by J. L. Whitmire and J. L. Gillespie for the Whitmire Motor
Company. Whitmire Motor Company was operated by Roland and Rush Whitmire, sons of T.
W. Whitmfre, owner of the Watermire Hotel (#37). Other usss haveincluded the B & B Feed
& Ssad Company. Thisbuilding opened in 1941 as Houston's Fumiture & Appliance.

(Sanbom maps, documentary photos, survey files, interview with Pat Austin).

41. 57 East Main Street. Bek'sDepartment Store. Non-contributing, ca. 1940.

One-gtory building with origina ca. 1940 display windows, and modem auminumframedoors.
This building was occupied by Belk's, which remained in this location until the early 1990s The
present faux granite facade was added. The original brick ribbing on the sscond floor hes been
removed, and the second floor windows are covered by the new facade. Documentary photos
indicate the upper facade originally condsted of a Sepped pargpet roof in the center, amore Art
Modeme feature which isno longer there.  (Sanbom magps, documentary photos, interview with
Pa Austin).

42. 57 East Main Street. Harris Machine Shop. Contributing, ca. 1920.

One-gtory brick building with modemized storefront area, gpparently added when the building
became part of Belk's next door. Original brick of upper facade remains. Hat roofwith sepped
pargpet wall onthe eest Sde. Windows bricked in on eedt elevation. Stone foundation, now
covered with stucco. Thisbuilding originally housed the HarrisMachine Shop, and later the B &
B Fead & Saesd Company and, in the 1940s, Trantham's Department Store. 1n the 1970s the
building became part of Belk's (#44). Trantham's was originaly known as T. D. England Generd
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Store, which was darted in 18385 and was located in asmal woodframebuilding to the eedt of
the McMinn Hotel on West Main Street.  (Sanbom migps, survey files, interview with Pat
Austin).

Wes Jordan Strest—north Sde

43. 20030 Wedt Jordan Street Lawrence Building. Contributing. 1926.

One-gory, two bays on the west and two-story, two bayson the eedt, thisbuilding displays
Hemish bond brick in abasket weave pattem on the front facade and common bond on other
devations. Storefront configurations on the one-tory portion are intact. Some remoddling of
dorefronts on the two-story section.  Paired windows are sx-over-one. Hat roof Theinterior
retains much of its original integrity with square newe posts, original doors and transoms, a
skylight, crown moulding on the second floor, and tin ceilingson the first. Walls are eighteen+
inch thick masonry with beams joists, and tmssesof hemlock. This was the first location of the
Austin Photo Studio. It was located on the second floor dong with offices and gpartments.
Robert Lawrence, for whom the building was named, had an office on the sscond floor. The post
office was located on the first floor from 1927 until 1942. Westem Union a0 hed offices on
the first floor. (Sanbom maps, documentary photos, owner, interview with Pat Austin).

44. 8Wes Jordan Street Philip'sBakery. Contributing, ca. 1920., ca. 1935

Two-story brick building with one-over-one windows, flat roof, original storefront configuration
with modem doors and new brick on kickplates. 1t gopears from field observation that the brick
building to the west is actually an addition to this one madeca. 1935, snce it completely wraps
this building on the west and north Sdes.  Addition has double one-over-one windows and Sone
covering the west devation with beeded mortar joints. Storefront gopearsto be origina. One of
the earliest usesof the original section of this building was the Philip's Bakery, a Gaman bakery,
which moved to this location in 1920. Thisand the adjacent 4 West Jordan Stret (#45) and 36-
38 South Broad Streat (#8) were owned by the Mull family. (Sanbom maps, documentary
photos, survey files, interview with Pat Austin).

45. 4 Wed Jordan Street. Commercial Building. Contributing, ca. 1935.
One-gory brick building with original storefront bays and transoms. Basket weave brick above
transoms.  (Sanbom maps).
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SUmmary

The Main Street Historic District in Brevard, with a period of significance ranging from 1874 to
1952, is an intact grouping of late nineteenth to mid-twenfieth century commercia and civic
buildings. Together they form the centr commercia core of this county seet town in westem
North Carolinawhich began to devdop soon after the Civil War. The town of Brevard was the
commercid, civic, and socid center of Transylvania County. Even before the railroad arrived the
striking beauty of the county began to draw summer residents from coastd South Carolina.
Oncethe raifroad arrived in 1895, the town developed rapidly, growing inimportance as the
county seet. Bus nesses opened within the many new buildingsin downtown, and many hotels
were built to house agrowing number of summer tourists. Resorts developed around the county
aong with new indudtries. Asthese devdopments grew, downtown Brevard expanded.

While the mgjority of development inthe town took place from the tum of the twentieth century
through the 1920s examples of earlier and later devdlopment within the town aso exigt.

Brevard isthe only town in Transylvania County to devdop an extensve commercia downtown
core, and it contains many fine examples of one, two, and three story brick commercia

buildings, the county courthouse, and remnants ofthe boom inresort hotel building a the tum of
the century. The context ofthe Main Street Historic District within the development of the town
of Brevard and Transylvania County is more fiilly documented in the Multiple Property
Documentation Form, "Historic and Architectural Resources of Transylvania County, North
Caroling, including the incorporated towns of Brevard and Rosman, ca 1820-1941." In
particular, the context sections entitled "Pre-Raifroad Transylvania County 1861-18%4," (pp. 15
20) "Earlyfridustrialization,1895-1916," (pp. 21-31) "Building and Rebuilding, War to War
1917-1941," (pp. 32-34) and "Transylvania County Today" (pp. 35-36) s the Sagefor the
devdopments of the commercia core of Brevard during its period of significance from 1874, the
date of the earliest building inthe digtrict, the Transylvania County Courthouse, through 1952.
Although the centra businessdistrict continued to develop through the 1950s, very few intact
buildings from thistime period are till ganding, therefore thefifty-yearcut-off dateis
gppropriate for both CriteriaA and C.

The Main Sfreet Historic District medsregisfration requirements for significance inthe history
of Transylvania County's architecture as outlined in Property Type 8 (Schools, Hospitds and
Govemment Buildings- pp. 64-66) and Property Type 9 (Commercia and Industrial Buildings-
- pp. 67-71.) TheMain Sfreet Historic District is eligiblefor listing under National Register
Criterion A for the district's association with the commercia devdopment ofthe county and
Criterion C for the collection of late nineteenth to mid-twentieth century commercia and
govemment buildingswithin their original setting.
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Historic Background, and Commer ce Context

Transylvania County was formed on Febmary 15, 1861, from parts of Henderson and Jackson
Counties. Brevard was sdected as the county seet soon after, but was not officially incorporated
until 1867." It was named for Colond Ephram Brevard, aRevolutionary patriot. B. C.
Lankford, L. S Gash, and Alex English donated fifty acrestotal for the town of Brevard, which
was laid out by James KilHan, W. Probart Poor, and Charlie Patton”*  Land for the pubUc
buildings and three churcheswas st asde, and the remaining lots were sold a public auction.
The origina layout ofthe town centered around the intersection of Main and Broad dreets,
forming what came to be known as public square (sse Exhibit A). Seventy-nine lots fronting
onto ten Sreets formed the core ofthe downtown, mog of which are within the boundaries ofthe
higtoric digtrict.™ The first courthouse was a small woodframebuilding, completed in 1866, built
by confractors George Clayton and Ephraim England. Only a fewframehouses and commercid
buildings existed inthe town by 1867, and the population was amere fifty resdents™* Dueto the
economic difficulties which resulted from the Civil War, the present brick courthouse was not
completed until 1874, the first brick smcture to be built in the town.* With the completion of the
county courthouse, Brevard rapidly becamethe governmental and political center of the county.
Beforethe arrival of the railroad, the economic maingtays of the county were agriculture,
hvestock, and grigt mills” With no railroad and poor roads, the population ofthe county settled
primarily in Brevard, where acoess to town for busness, legal, and political transactions at the
courthousewas doseby. Brevard remained as a smal mountain community until the arrival of
the Hendersonville and Brevard Railroad in 1895, when its building and population boom began.
It waan't until the resort community of Lake Toxaway and the town of Rosman devedoped a the
tum of the century that more intensive settlement began in other parts of the county.”

Like many other westem North Carolina communities, the natura beauty of Brevard and
Transylvania County drew tourigts to the aregq, creating the need for more subsantia brick
commercid buildings, hotels, and boarding houses to house these summer visitors”™ By 1899,

'Mills, Don. Transylvania Countv Heritage. Waynesville, North Carolina: DonMills, Inc., 1995, p. 1.
Transylvania County Plat Book 2, p. 135.

Transylvania Cotintv Heritage, p. 1.

eeibid.

Mbid, p. 2.

Mbid, p. 30.

"Thon*son, Deborah. "Historic and Architectura Resources of Transylvania County, North Caroling, including the
Towns of Brevard and Rosman, ca. 1820-1941". Multiple property documantation form, November 1991, p. 26.
ASmimer visitors were not new to Transylvania Coimty. Summer colonies inthe Dunn's Rock areg, doseto the
South Carolina border, drew visitorsto the areaas early as the mid-nineteenth century from the low country.
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the town was booming, boasting apopulation of 300, with many mgjor buildingsin the
downtown completed soon after. The McMinn and Pickelsmer families were some ofthe
ealies devdopersinthe town, developing large expansesof brick buildings & the tum of the
century which fronted onto Main Strest and creeted the physical comersof the courthouse
uae” Thexe buildingswere the first to begin replacing the earlier wood frame smctures,
indicative of theriseineconomic prosperity for the town. In 1899, lots intown sold for $300,
and two trains arrived daily.™ According to the 1903 North Carolina Y eerbook and Busness
Directory, the population of Brevard increased to 584, and there were five hotds and boarding
houses, one bank, one barber shop, three blacksmiths, one bookstore, three confractors (CC.
Kilpatrick, J. M. Kilpatrick, and T. L. Clark), one casket manufacturer, six clothing sores, one
dentig, five physcians, one dmggist, one fijmiture store, eight generd dores, Sx lawyers, one
red edate agent, one insurance agent, and one telephone exchange. A 1907 Brevard Board of
Trade publication noted that therewere five hotels in town, including the Aethelwold, the
Henning lim, the Clayton Hotel, the Moore Hotel, and the Brevard Hotel." The town of
Brevard, by 1910, had water and sewer sysems, atdegraph and tdephone system, five miles of
paved sdewaks, afire depatment, abank, abuilding and loan associaion, aretail merchants
association, weekly newspapers, abrass band, and electricity.”

By 1911, the population had grownto 1909, with two dmggists (Macfie and Pickelsmer),
thirteen generd stores, and two livery sables™”™ Brevard continued to grow, with the population
by 1920 being 1658. Inaddition to the thriving commercia operations downtown, there was
one cotton mill in the town; one newspgper; one bank (the Brevard Banking Company, desgned
by Hendersonville architect Erie Stillwell in 1924); and ten attomeys, an atestment to thefact
that Brevard continued to serve as the political and legal center of the county.Even with the

Brevard didn't sse its wave of the tourism industry, however, until the railroad made the town more accessible after
1895.

The McMinns developed the McMinn building at the northwest comer of the square, and soon theredfter the
Aethewold Hotel, on the southeast comer. The Pickelssmer family deveoped the row of buildings a the southwest
comer of the square. The 1881 courthouse sits a the northeast comer.

‘N Transylvania County Centennid 1861-1961", impublished souvenir program. Information on the town in 1899
camefrom the Svlivan Vallev News. "Brevard's First Boom-1899." Thiswas one of the earhest newspgpearsin the
town of Brevard.

"Thompson, Deborah. "Transylvania Coimty, City of Brevard, Town of Rosman". Multiple property
documentation form. Archives & History, November 1991, p. 22.

““Phillips, LauraA. W. and Thompson, Deborah. Transvlivania: The Architectura Historv of aMountain County.
Raleigh, North Carolina Marblehead Publishing, 1998, p. 47.

‘“North Cardlina'Y earbook and Business Directory. Raeigh, North Carolina The News and Observer, 1911.
"'Ibid, 1925.
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Depresson, the population in Brevard continued to grow, reaching 2339 by 1930, and 3061 by
1940~ Many busnesses remained open during the 1930s but someclosed. Thetanning
indugtries, Rogman Tanning Extract Company and Toxaway Tanning Company, which Joseph
Silversteen had developed beginning & the tum of the century, played amgjor rolein helping
Brevard and Rosman through the Depresson years. Theseindustries for the mogt part remained
active through the 1930s, and very few ofthe employees lost their jobs. Even when the plants
hed to shut down for afew daysa atime due to lack of work Siversteen was adle to pay his
workers.”r  The Brevard Lumber Company, begun in 1910, dso remained open in the
Depresson years, becoming fully operationa again by 1938 When Brevard College formed in
1934 (formerly Brevard Ingtitute, which had dosed in 1933) many buildings were remodeed,
and the gonewall and gate around the campus was built in 1937, providing some employment
both privately and through the Works Project Administration.”r  The Ecuda Pgper Mill was built
by Peimsylvania busnessman Henry Strausin 1938, giving yet another boost to the county's
econony.

While economic conditions in the county were not the best during the Depression years, as
everywhere in the country, the fact that many people remained employed hdped busnessesin
downtown Brevard to stay open until late 1930sto early 1940sFederd work programs inthe
form of the Civilian Conservation Corps and the Works Progress Adminisfration beganto asss
othersin need. Transylvania County was an ided place for the Civilian Conservation Corpsto
work, snce therewas extensve forest land for Corpsfraining camps and forest rehabilitation
work which needed to be donein over-logged aress. The Blue Ridge Parkway, a portion of
which runs through Transylvania County, was dso begun in the mid-1930s as ancther
Conservation Corps project.'”

Asin most communities throughout the country. World War |1 significantly boosted the
economy and asssted greetly in fiill economic recovery. Downtown Brevard experienced
another wave of development into the 1940s and early 1950s, when many buildings were
remodded in the style of the day, and new budnesses opened downtown. Movie theaters, a
bowling aley, and a skating rink which were located in downtown buildings indicated the
continuing socid center role downtown Brevard played for the local community. Downtovm

'5lbid, 1937 and 1941.

‘“Sherrill, Betty, county archivist. Interview by Sybil Bowers, 28 Febmary 2002.
‘"Transylvania Countv Heritage, North Carolina. Waynesville, North Carolin: Don Mills, Inc.,
1995, p. 31.

'%id, p. 68.

‘“Transylvania. The Architectural History of a Mountain Countv, p. 76.
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was filled on Saturdays and stores often remained open late into the evening. Dmg sore soda
shopswere filled in the aftermoons and weekends as gathering pl aces. T he library services
within the town greatly expanded inthe 1940s including the beginning of a bookmobile service
in 1949.2 Yhe pod office was built in 1940, under the Federd Works Adminidfration.22
Downtown wes the center of socid life for the community with parades, grand openings of new
gores and two thriving movie theaters through the late 1950s drawing the population into
town.23 While the mgjor building boom had occurred before World War 1, therewere severd
new buildings and budnesses which opened in the mid-twentieth century, and these are included
within the boundaries of the district. Brevard today is experiencing a second wave of
commercia prosperity due once again to the development of the summer resort communities and
the beginnings of renovation of many of the downtown buildings. It till remains as the
govemment, commercia, and cultural center of the county.

Architecture Context

Brevard and Rosman are the only incorporated towns in Transylvania County. Mogt of the
county’s architecture is st within arural context, making the town of Brevard unique within the
county for having adefined commerciad dovmtown core. The Main Sfreet Historic Digtrict in
Brevard containsthe brick Second Empire brick Transylvania County Courthouse (1874), one
ofthe oldest in westem North Carolina, and many fine examples of one and two-story brick
commercid buildings from the late nineteenth century through the early 1950s. Some of these
include the McMinn Building (1899), one of the largest buildingsinthe district, which displays
daborate decorative brickwork inthe comice and retainstwo of itsorigina storefronts complete
with iron pilasters; the Lowe Auto Company (ca 1928), with its aborate comice of
herringbone brick sat with cast meddlions of cars; and the Brevard Banking Company (1924),
the only Neodasscd Revival building inthe district with amonumenta entry portico detalled in
limestone.

Buildings built from the late 1890sto ca. 1910 in Brevard were congdmcted of brick, most with
defined comices and rooflines. They are good examples of tum-of-the-century commercid
building design characterized by the use of decorative and pattened brickwork, sheped pargpets,
and very resfrained classicd or medieva-inspired omament. The largest buildings inthe district,
including the McMinn Building (#23), were built inthis time period. Many of these early
buildings have been subgtantiadly dtered inthe late twentieth century. The 1910s to 1920sin

20Audtin, Pat. Long-time Brevard resident. Interview by Sybil Bowers and Amanda Blosser, 23 April 2001.
2' 1bid, p. 4.

22lbid, p. 74.

23Documentary  photographs in the working file are indicative of the activity in downtown through the 1950s,
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Brevard sav amovement towards more simplicity, with the Commercid Style being the
culmination of thistrend. The main feeture ofthe style isthe use of plain brick wall surfaces.
Buildings from the 1930s often employed the use of textured brick and were primarily one-gory
buildingswith one or two storefronts. The Commercid Stylewas still popular during this
decade with plain comices and window frames. The Co-ed Theater (#27) is anotable exception
to the building trends of the 1930s with the use ofthe Art Modeme style. This style was
typically usaed for movietheaters Severd older buildings in the district were dtered in the 1940s
usng materids available a the time. Someof these dtered buildingsinclude Ward's
Newsstand/Blue Gator Tea Room (#13); and the City Market (#32) with its awning style
windows. New buildings from the 1940swere one or two-story smctures, often built of
concrete block with brick facades. The use of glassblock, arelatively new materid of thetime
period, was used in window openings, such as the Commercial Building on Wes Probart Sfreet
(#10). The 1950s buildingsin the district are both one-story brick smctures. Pearlman's
(#26), dating to 1952, is agood example of the continued use of the Commercia Style into the
post World Wer |1 era
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Additional UTMs
5. 17 341040 3900330

Boundary Description
The boundaries for this nomination are indicated on the accompanying tax/sketch mep & a scae
of 1" = 100.

Boundary Justification

The boundary includes aportion of the origina plat of the Town of Brevard, centered around the
origina courthouse square, as laid off in 1861 and shown in Exhibit A, "Plat of the Town of
Brevard". The boundaries have been drawn to include the grestest concentration of contributing
late-nineteenth and early-to-mid-twentieth century commercia and civic resources. Land use
outside of the district boundariesisprimarily modem commercid buildings dong with
resdentia  neighborhoods.
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Brevard
Transylvania County
North Carolina
Photographer: Sybil Argintar Bowers
Date of photos April 2001
L ocation of Division of Archivesand History

origina negatives. Ore Village Lane
Asheville, North Carolina 28303

1. Intersection of West Main Strest and North Broad Street, view northwest.
Deborah Thompson, 1994.

2. North Caldwel Street, view northeadt.
3. 5TimesArcade, view south.
4. South Broad Sfreet, view northeadt.

5. (former) Masonic Hall, 30-34 South Broad Sfreet, non-contributing building,
view northwest.

6. Brevard City Hall and Fire Station, 128 West Main Sfreet, view northeedt.

7. Wes Main Sfredt, view southeedt.
Deborah Thompson, 1994.

8. dley to north of McMinn Building, 4-14 Wes Main Sfreet, view southeed.
Deborah Thompson, 1994.

9. Transylvania County Courthouse, 12 East Main Sfreet, view northeed.
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Co-ad Theater, 101 Wes Main Street, view southwest.

Brevard Banking Company, 73 West Main Stredt, view south.
Deborah Thompson, 1994.

Aethewold Hotel, 1-3 Eag Main Street, non-contributing building, view south.
Times Arcade, view northesdt.

Wes Jordan Street, view north.
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